
 
County Offices 

Newland 
Lincoln 

LN1 1YL 
 

6 January 2023 
 

Planning and Regulation Committee 
 

A meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee will be held on Monday, 16 January 
2023 at 10.30 am in the Council Chamber, County Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL for the 
transaction of business set out on the attached Agenda.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Debbie Barnes OBE 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Membership of the Planning and Regulation Committee  
(15 Members of the Council) 
 
Councillors I G Fleetwood (Chairman), Mrs C L E Vernon (Vice-Chairman), P Ashleigh-Morris, 
T R Ashton, Mrs A M Austin, S A J Blackburn, I D Carrington, A M Hall, Mrs M J Overton MBE, 
N H Pepper, R P H Reid, N Sear, P A Skinner, T J N Smith and 1 Vacancy 
 
 

Public Document Pack





PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE AGENDA 
MONDAY, 16 JANUARY 2023 

 
 
Item 
 

Title 
 

Pages 
  

1.  Apologies/replacement members  
 

 
 
2.  Declarations of Members' Interests  

 
 

 
3.  Minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Regulation 

Committee held on 5 December 2022  
 

5 - 10 

 
4.  TRAFFIC ITEMS  

 
 

 
4.1   Sutton on Sea, High Street and Cromer Avenue - proposed 

amendments to waiting restrictions  
 

11 - 18 

 
4.2   Grantham, Various Roads - Proposed Residents Parking 

Scheme  
 

19 - 28 

 
4.3   East Heckington A17 - Proposed 40mph speed limit  

 
29 - 42 

 
4.4   Swineshead, Abbey Road - Proposed waiting restrictions  

 
43 - 48 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Democratic Services Officer Contact Details  
 
Name: Rachel Wilson 

 
Direct Dial 07796 994874 

 
E Mail Address democraticservices@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 
Please note:  for more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting 
 

• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 

 
Contact details set out above. 
 
Please note: This meeting will be broadcast live on the internet and access can be 
sought by accessing Agenda for Planning and Regulation Committee on Monday, 
16th January, 2023, 10.30 am (moderngov.co.uk) 
 
For more information about the Planning process and to view Planning decisions 
please click on the following link:  Planning Portal 
 
All papers for council meetings are available on: 
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/council-business/search-committee-records 
 
 

https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MId=7453&Ver=4
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MId=7453&Ver=4
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/planning/find-planning-application
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/council-business/search-committee-records


  1 

 
 PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
 5 DECEMBER 2022 

 

 

PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR I G FLEETWOOD (CHAIRMAN) 
 
Councillors Mrs C L E Vernon (Vice-Chairman), P Ashleigh-Morris, T R Ashton, 
Mrs A M Austin, S A J Blackburn, I D Carrington, A M Hall, N Sear, P A Skinner and T J N Smith 
 
Councillors: P M Dilks, Mrs J E Killey and R Wootten attended the meeting as observers 
 
Officers in attendance:- 
 
Jeanne Gibson (Programme Leader: Minor Works and Traffic), Neil McBride (Head of 
Planning), Martha Rees (Solicitor) and Rachel Wilson (Democratic Services Officer) 
  
43     APOLOGIES/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs M J Overton MBE, N H Pepper 
and R P H Reid. 
  
44     DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 
In relation to agenda item 5.3, Councillor I G Fleetwood noted that he had friends that lived 
in the area covered by Zone 5C. 
  
45     MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND REGULATION 

COMMITTEE HELD ON 7 NOVEMBER 2022 
 

RESOLVED 
  
That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 November 2022 be agreed and signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record. 
  
46     MINUTES OF THE SITE VISIT HELD ON 17 NOVEMBER 2022 

 
RESOLVED 
  
That the minutes of the site visit held on 17 November 2022 be agreed as a correct record, 
subject to it being noted that Councillor C L E Vernon was not in attendance at the visit. 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



2 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
5 DECEMBER 2022 
 

 

47     TRAFFIC ITEMS 
  

48     WEST WILLOUGHBY A153, WILLOUGHBY ROAD - PROPOSED 40MPH SPEED LIMIT 
EXTENSION 
 

The Committee considered a report which detailed a proposal for the reduction of the 
60mph speed limit on the A153, Willoughby Road to 40mph.  investigations had indicated 
that the above location may be considered a ‘Borderline Case’, as defined in the Council’s 
speed limit policy. 
  
The Programme Leader: Minor Works and Traffic introduced the report and shared a 
presentation which detailed the area under consideration. 
  
Councillor R Wootten was in attendance as the local member and spoke in support of the 
proposal, commenting that the proposed reduction in speed limit should be extended to 
include the village of West Willoughby. 
  
Members commented that they were supportive of the proposal in the report, and felt it 
was important that the speed restriction was introduced as a priority and extending the area 
covered by the speed limit was something that could be revisited in the future.  Clarification 
was also sought regarding how the accident rate was calculated. 
  
On a motion proposed by Councillor I G Fleetwood and seconded by Councillor P A Skinner, 
it was 
  
RESOLVED (unanimous) 
  
That the reduction in speed limit proposed be approved so that the necessary consultation 
process to bring it into effect may be pursued. 
  
   
49     SPALDING, A151 WINSOVER ROAD - PROPOSED PUFFIN CROSSING FACILITY 

 
The Committee considered a report which detailed the outcome of a pedestrian crossing 
survey at the site of the existing zebra crossing between the junctions with Hawthorn Bank 
and Carrington Road, as shown at Appendix B to the report. 
  
The Programme Leader: Minor Works and Traffic introduced the report and shared a 
presentation which detailed the area under consideration. 
  
On a motion proposed by Councillor I G Fleetwood, and seconded by Councillor I D 
Carrington, it was 
  
 
 
 

Page 6



3 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 

5 DECEMBER 2022 
 

 

RESOLVED (unanimous) 
  
That the submission of a funding bid for a feasibility study, design and installation of a puffin 
crossing at this location, be supported. 
  
50     LINCOLN, PROPOSED PERMIT PARKING SCHEME ZONE 5C - ROADS BETWEEN SINCIL 

BANK DRAIN, HIGH STREET, PENNELL STREET AND PORTLAND STREET 
 

Consideration was given to a supplementary report to the earlier one brought to this 
Committee on 7 November 2022.  It was resolved at that meeting to visit the area to gain a 
better understanding of the potential impact of the proposed scheme to introduce permit 
parking within the streets shown at Appendix B to the report.  A visit to the area was carried 
out on 17 November 2022. 
  
The Programme Leader: Minor Works and Traffic introduced the report and shared a 
presentation which detailed the area under consideration.  It was noted that 17 objections 
to the proposed scheme had been received, and these were all detailed within the report. 
  
Councillor Mrs J E Killey was invited to address the Committee as the local member for 
Lincoln Park, and points highlighted to the Committee included: 
  

       The regeneration vision, which had evolved over time, aimed to improve the quality 
of life for residents in terms of environmental and levelling up objectives.  A residents 
parking scheme was the first stage of this vision, and there were three main strands 
which justified the scheme going ahead: 

1)    There was support for the residents parking scheme from local residents, 
although there had been some objections, residents overwhelmingly 
supported the scheme.  The neighbourhood office regularly received inquiries 
about when this scheme would be implemented. 

2)    The vision - The resident’s parking scheme was part of a much bigger scheme 
and vision for the area.  There was a need to move commuters out of the 
area, and reduce the number of motorists using the area as a rat run between 
Pelham Bridge and the High Street.  This would be followed by the Town Deal 
which would see streets in this area reconfigured to create a green corridor 
giving more priority to green spaces, pedestrians and cyclists. 

3)    Lincolnshire County Council was working with the City of Lincoln Council to 
remove traffic from this area and the outcome would be reported to central 
government.  The resident’s parking scheme was the first stage to 
regenerating the area, and was part of a much greater strategy. 

  
During discussion by the Committee, it was acknowledged that this was an important issue 
for residents and it had been extremely useful to hear the views of the local member. 
  
Members expressed concerns that there would be several hundred households who would 
be paying up to £76 per year for parking which they had previously been able to do without 
charge.  There were also concerns regarding ‘mission creep’ with this following previous 

Page 7



4 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
5 DECEMBER 2022 
 

 

schemes introduced within this area, and that this could create a pressure for non-local 
cars,  but should make it easier for local residents to park closer to their homes  However, it 
was acknowledged that the City of Lincoln Council was keen for this to progress and that the 
local member was supportive of the scheme.   
  
On a motion proposed by Councillor T R Ashton, and seconded by Councillor I G Fleetwood, 
it was: 
  
RESOLVED (6 in favour, 0 against, 5 abstentions) 
  
That the objections be overruled and that scheme as advertised be introduced 
. 
  
51     LINCOLN, PROPOSED PERMIT PARKING SCHEME ZONE 5D - ROADS BETWEEN 

SINCIL BANK DRAIN, CANWICK ROAD, SINCIL BANK FOOTBALL GROUND AND THE 
EAST WEST LINK ROAD 
 

Consideration was given to a report which detailed objections received to the proposal to 
introduce a permit parking scheme in Zone 5D – roads between Sincil Bank Drain, Canwick 
Road, Sincil Bank Football Ground and the East West Link Road in Lincoln.  The proposal had 
been publicly advertised between Thursday, 22 September and Friday, 28 October 2022. 
  
The Programme Leader: Minor Works and Traffic introduced the report and shared a 
presentation which detailed the area under consideration.  It was reported that 32 
objections had been received, and these were set out in more detail in Appendix C to the 
report. 
  
Attention was drawn to the modifications to the scheme which would now include 
Chelmsford Street, Hope Street and Portland Street. 
  
Member noted that comments made in relation to the previous item were also applicable to 
this proposal, and that given the slightly lower level of public support for this scheme, 
seemed to demonstrate that the further from the city centre they go, the less support there 
was for this type of scheme.  There was an acknowledgement that this scheme would come 
with a cost burden for families in this area, and that there was marginal support for this 
scheme, and would encourage for future roll out of these schemes, the whole area should 
be looked at rather than on an area by area basis.  Members acknowledged that there could 
be some parking that could move from area 5C towards this area.  The proximity of Pelham 
Bridge to the town centre in terms of walking distance was also highlighted. 
  
On a motion proposed by Councillor T R Ashton, and seconded by Councillor I G Fleetwood, 
it was: 
  
 
 
 

Page 8



5 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 

5 DECEMBER 2022 
 

 

RESOLVED (10 in favour, 0 against, 1 abstention) 
  
That the objections be overruled and that the scheme as advertised be introduced, with the 
inclusion of the minor modifications at Chelmsford Street, Hope Street and Portland Street. 
  
 
 
The meeting closed at 11.05 am 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



       
 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson, Executive Director of Place 
 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 16 January 2023 

Subject: 
Sutton on Sea, High St and Cromer Avenue – proposed 
amendments to waiting restrictions 

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report considers objections received to the above proposals, the extent of which 
are shown at Appendix B. 

 
 

Recommendation(s): 

That the Committee overrules the objections and approves the proposals as 
advertised. 

 
 
Background 
 
Concerns have been by raised by the local Member regarding the current waiting 
restrictions on High Street and Cromer Avenue. The current limited waiting restrictions in 
place apply from 1st May – 30th September for one hour between 10am-10pm daily on 
High Street and between 10am and 7pm on Cromer Avenue. 
 
Given that there are many businesses in the area these hours of operation are 
problematic in that the turnover of parking does not occur until late morning, and the one 
hour restriction is maintained throughout the evening. The result is reduced on street 
parking availability for customers shopping during the morning, and parking restricted to 
one hour in the evening when people wish to visit the restaurants and cafes. 
 
To address this it is proposed to amend the one hour restriction on these streets so that it 
applies between 8am and 6pm daily, as shown at Appendix B. It is also proposed that this 
restriction should apply throughout the year to maintain a turnover of on street parking 
for customers visiting businesses in the area. 

Two objections have been received to these proposals. Loading and unloading often takes 
place in the morning when parking is unrestricted until 10am. The introduction of one 
hour limited waiting bays will interfere with this arrangement. There are concerns that 
parking will be displaced into nearby streets and that visitors will be forced to park in the 
District Council car park which is in poor condition and is chargeable. A request has been 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4.1



received suggesting that the seasonal restriction should be removed in other streets in the 
area, as permitted parking on these all day during the winter leads to traffic congestion. 
The proposed restriction is to apply all year which will be unnecessary given the low 
footfall in the winter. 

These comments are noted. With regard to loading within the limited waiting bay, if this 
extends beyond the hour permitted for parking then a Civil Enforcement Officer may 
confirm loading is still ongoing and issue a waiver if required.  

The purpose of the proposed restrictions is to maintain a turnover of parking for shoppers 
visiting the many businesses which operate throughout the year, not just during the 
summer season. There may be some displacement of parking into the surrounding area 
and, during busy periods, long term parking nearby may only be available in the car park. 
Plans have recently been approved for a resurfacing scheme here. 

An initial scheme considered a more extensive replacement of seasonal restrictions in 
additional to those proposed on High Street and Cromer Avenue, but feedback following 
consultation was that the amendments should be restricted to these two areas. 

Conclusion 
 
The proposed changes to waiting restrictions in High Street and Cromer Avenue are 
located within the amenity and shopping areas. The turnover of on street parking they will 
generate from 8am daily will benefit local businesses and their customers. Similarly, the 
evening economy will benefit from unrestricted parking after 6pm. If the scheme is 
introduced any issues arising can be assessed in due course. 

Consultation 
 
The following were consulted on these proposals: Local Member, East Lindsey District 
Council; Mablethorpe and Sutton Town Council; Lincolnshire Police; EMAS; Lincolnshire 
Fire & Rescue; Road Haulage Association; Freight Transport Association; NFU; Bus 
companies - Stagecoach, PC Coaches, Brylaine and Grayscroft. 
 
The local Member is in support of the proposals. 
 
Following statutory consultation, the proposal was publicly advertised from 27th April 
2022 to 27th May 2022.  Consultation documents were hand delivered to residents and 
businesses on 25th April 2022. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

None carried out 

Appendices 
 
These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 
Appendix A Site location 
Appendix B Detail of proposed waiting restrictions 

Page 12



Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 were relied 
upon in the writing of this report. 
 

Document Title Where the document can be viewed. 
Consultation documents; Correspondence Available on request 

 
This report was written by Tina Featherstone, who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
TRO@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A: Site location 

Sutton on Sea, High St and Cromer Avenue – proposed amendments to waiting restrictions 

 

Page 15

Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B: Sutton on Sea, High St and Cromer Avenue – proposed amendments to waiting restrictions 

 

 

Page 17

Appendix B



This page is intentionally left blank



       
 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson, Executive Director of Place 
 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 16 January 2023 

Subject: 
Grantham, Various Roads - Proposed Residents Parking 
Scheme 

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report considers objections to a proposed Residents Parking Scheme (RPS) Zone 1A, 
in the vicinity of the train station in Grantham. 
 
 

Recommendation(s): 

That the Committee overrules the objections so that the Order, as advertised, may be 
introduced. 

 
 
Background 
 
Roads in the residential areas around Grantham town centre and train station have for 
some time been subject to on street parking by shoppers and commuters, reducing the 
capacity for residents to park near to their properties. 
 
Following a request for a permit parking scheme to be introduced, residents within four 
potential zones were canvassed for their support for such a scheme. The results confirmed 
that only the zone in the vicinity of the train station received sufficient support for it to be 
a viable scheme. Following further contact with the residents here the decision was taken 
to progress the traffic regulation order required for its implementation.  
 
The proposed scheme will be in operation Monday to Saturday, 8am-6pm, with two hour 
limited waiting bays to apply Monday to Friday, 8am-6pm for use by non-permit holders; 
these bays will be available for unlimited parking at weekends when the numbers of 
commuters will be reduced. 
 
A total of 11 objections were received citing various concerns relating to the scheme and 
these are listed, along with officer’s comments, at Appendix C. 
 
In summary, there is concern about the additional cost of permits for residents should the 
scheme be implemented, given the ongoing increase in the cost of living. It is suggested 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4.2



that the scheme will fail as it does not address competition for parking after 6pm, when 
reserved space for permit holders would no longer apply. Many are concerned about the 
impact on visitors and carers accessing the area.  
 
The content of the objections is noted. Any decision on this proposal will take into account 
the effect of increases in the costs borne by residents at this time and in the coming 
months. It is recognised that the scheme will have limitations in terms of provision for 
permit holders during the evenings. The scheme however is designed to exclude non-
residents when there is demand from them, which is during the daytime. However more 
space for residents and permit holders outside this time cannot be provided. The concerns 
of nearby businesses are noted, but the aim of the scheme is to give permit holders 
priority over commuters. There are alternative places to park both off and on street, 
although these may be less convenient and incur costs. Parking by visitors and carers is 
provided for through the scheme’s visitor permit system, with limited waiting bays also 
available for those without a permit. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The proposed permit scheme will provide parking for permit holders and short term 
parking for non-permit holders only during those periods when commuters or shoppers 
may use the area for free parking. These will be deterred from driving through the area 
searching for on street parking and which will reduce the additional noise, pollution and 
potential danger to pedestrians this may generate. 
 
Consultation 
 
The following were consulted on these proposals: Local Member, South Kesteven District 
Council; Grantham Town Council; Lincolnshire Police; EMAS; Lincolnshire Fire & Rescue; 
Road Haulage Association; Freight Transport Association; National Farmers Association; 
Stagecoach; Centrebus; Confederation of Public Transport; Traffic Commissioners. 
 
Following statutory consultation, the proposal was publicly advertised from 14 October 
2022 to 16 November 2022. 
The consultation documents were delivered to all residents within the proposed zone via 
Royal Mail in the week commencing 3 October 2022. 
The local Member is in support of the proposals. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

None carried out 

Appendices 
 
These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 
Appendix A Site location 
Appendix B Detail of proposed restrictions 
Appendix C Details of objections and comments 

Page 20



 
Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 were relied 
upon in the writing of this report. 
 
Document Title Where the document can be viewed. 
Correspondence; Consultation documents. Available on request. 
 
This report was written by Tina Featherstone who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
TRO@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A : Site location - Grantham, various roads – proposed residents permit scheme Zone 1A 

 

P
age 23

A
ppendix A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B : Grantham, various roads – proposed residents permit scheme Zone 1A 

 

 

 

Page 25

Appendix B



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C : Grantham, various roads – proposed Residents Parking Scheme Zone 1A 

Details of objections. 

The cost of parking permits will be an additional 
burden to residents already dealing with the cost of 
living crisis.  

This will be taken into consideration as part of the decision 
making process. 

If the purpose of the scheme is to deter commuters 
then residents should be entitled to free permits or 
at least one free permit. 

The scheme must be self financing in order to be viable. It 
will therefore be necessary to charge for permits to cover 
the cost of administering the scheme and enforcing it. 

The scheme will force residents into having no 
option but to purchase a permit, otherwise there 
will be no where for them to park. 

The current situation is that during the day on street 
parking is restricted for residents so parking is limited for 
them. The aim of the scheme is to allow permit holders an 
advantage over non permit holders. 

Vulnerable, less well off and elderly residents may 
not have the means to purchase vehicle or visitor 
permits digitally, risking further social isolation. 

Should the scheme be introduced assistance and 
information on how to obtain permits and visitor passes 
will be provided. 

The scheme will impose additional stress on 
residents as it requires permits and visitor permits to 
be displayed with the risk of penalty charge notices 
being a constant worry. 

Initially when a permit scheme is introduced residents may 
take some time to adjust. However once a scheme is 
established this is rarely an issue. 

Parking for carers and visitors will be compromised 
by the scheme 

A system by which visitor permits and passes may be 
supplied will be available if the scheme is introduced. 
Contact details of how these will work have been provided 
to each eligible property.  

The scheme penalizes those working from home as 
they would have to purchase a permit for the vehicle 
to park during the day. 

The current situation is that during the day on street 
parking is restricted for residents so parking is limited for 
them. The aim of the scheme is to allow permit holders an 
advantage over non permit holders. 

The scheme will be ineffective as it will apply during 
the daytime only. The scheme should be in 
operation throughout night also as this is when the 
space for on-street parking is limited. 

It is recognised that the scheme will have limitations in 
terms of provision for permit holders during the evenings. 
The scheme however is designed to exclude non-residents 
when there is demand from them during the day, but 
more space for residents and permit holders outside this 
time cannot be provided 

Concerns that applying the scheme on Saturdays is 
unnecessary as commuters will not be using the 
area. 

If the scheme is introduced its effects can be monitored 
and amendments applied as required. 

A 1 hour waiting restriction to apply between 10:00-
11:00am is suggested as an alternative deterrent to 
commuters rather than a permit scheme. 

A scheme of this nature would mean that residents would 
be required to relocate their vehicles during the period of 
restriction also. 

The need to create marked bays for the scheme will 
reduce on street parking space overall. 

The scheme is to be applied as a zone within which 
marked bays will not be required, except where waiting is 
limited. 

The provision of two permits per property will be 
insufficient for house of multiple occupation. 

The issuing of more that 2 permits risks oversubscription 
of the scheme which would reduce overall space for all 
permit holders. 

The scheme will not guarantee a parking space 
outside a permit holder’s property, which presents 
difficulties for those with mobility issues. 

The scheme cannot guarantee any permit holder a space 
outside their property. This will be neither practical or 
legal within the public highway. 

The scheme assumes that residents will always be 
using the same vehicle, or be the owner of that 
vehicle. This may not be the case and will require 
administration changes which will be burdensome. 

There may be some residents who have irregular vehicle 
arrangements. The majority will however be using the 
same vehicle(s). The Council will be happy to discuss how 
any unusual arrangements can be accommodated. 

There will be a negative effect on local businesses as 
their staff will be unable to park within the zone. 

Businesses within the zone will be entitled to permits. 

Page 27

Appendix C



The additional double yellow lines proposed are 
unnecessarily prohibitive when residents need to 
park to load and unload on occasion, receive 
deliveries or employ tradespeople who need to park. 

Additional 24 hour waiting restrictions have been 
proposed to maintain traffic flow and protect junctions, 
and where the roads are too narrow to support on street 
parking. However, should the scheme be introduced it may 
be reviewed and amendments proposed as required. 
Parking for the purposes of loading and unloading is 
permitted on yellow lines. A separate permit for 
tradespeople can be supplied. 

The permit scheme is a means of raising revenue for 
the council. 

The costs of the permits reflect the costs of administering 
and enforcing the scheme. The County Council is not 
permitted to extract profit from it. 

 

Page 28



       
 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson, Executive Director of Place 
 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 16 January 2023 

Subject: East Heckington A17 – Proposed 40mph speed limit  
Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report considers a request for the existing 50mph speed limit on the A17, East 
Heckington, to be reduced to 40mph as shown at Appendix D. 

 
 

Recommendation(s): 

That the Committee approves the revised extent of reduction in speed limit proposed 
at Appendix D, so that the necessary consultation process to bring it into effect may be 
pursued. 

 
 
Background 
 
Following a request for a review of the current 50mph speed limit through East 
Heckington an assessment has been carried out. Speed survey equipment was installed at 
the three sites identified at Appendix B with the following results: 
 
Site 1 – 46mph; Site 2 – 42mph; Site 3- 46mph  
 
In accordance with the criteria set out in the speed limit policy a borderline case may be 
identified and is defined within the policy at 4.2 as follows: 
 
4.2 At locations where the mean speed data falls within +/- 3mph of Table 3 (Mean 
Speeds), then this is classed as a Borderline Case. 
 

 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 4.3



The report brought to this committee on 7th November last year recommended that the 
Committee approve a 40mph speed limit for the length shown at Appendix B on the basis 
that, taking into account the mean speed results at survey sites 1 and 3, the criteria for a 
Borderline Case are met. The Committee considered the recommendation but were 
concerned that reducing the speed limit over such an extended length of the A17 would 
impact negatively on traffic flows, and that vehicle speeds were already largely self-
regulating as the mean speed results indicate. However, it was noted that there were 
various junctions and accesses to small businesses along the road. Members resolved that, 
as this was a borderline case, further information was required from officers on the nature 
and number of collisions under the current speed limit, so that a more informed decision 
on the matter could be made.  
 
Detailed information on the 15 reported injury accidents which have occurred over the 
last five years on this stretch of the A17 within the 40mph limit originally proposed is 
provided at Appendix C. As a result of reassessment, a revised proposal shown at 
Appendix D, which focuses the speed limit reduction around a central area of activity and 
where a number of collisions have occurred, is proposed. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Approval of a Borderline Case is at the discretion of this Committee and given the 
comments raised in response to the initial proposal for a 40mph speed limit reduction at 
this location, the extent of that proposal has been reduced in line with a mean speed of 
42mph which allows a 40mph speed limit to be pursued in accordance with policy criteria, 
and without the need for Committee approval. 
 
Consultation 
 
No formal consultation is required at this stage.  
 
 
 

 
 

Risks and Impact Analysis 

None carried out 

Appendices 
 
These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 
Appendix A Site location 
Appendix B Original extent of 40mph speed limit proposed and survey locations 
Appendix C Information on road traffic accidents 
Appendix D Revised proposal for 40mph speed limit 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 were relied 
upon in the writing of this report. 
 
Document title Where the document can be viewed 
Correspondence; speed survey results Available on request 
 
This report was written by Tina Featherstone, who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
TRO@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A : A17 East Heckington speed limit review 

 

P
age 33

A
ppendix A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



NORTH

A3

 
J
u
n
 
1
6
,
2
0
2
2
 
-
 
8
:
4
4
a
m

 
\
\
h
p
c
e
n
1
\
u
s
e
r
s
\
u
s
e
r
s
\
c
o
m

m
o
n
\
T

r
a
f
f
i
c
 
R

e
g
u
l
a
t
i
o
n
 
O

r
d
e
r
s
\
S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 
M

a
s
t
e
r
 
F

o
l
d
e
r
 
D

O
 
N

O
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E
\
0
0
1
-
2
0
0
\
1
8
5
 
A

1
7
 
H

e
c
k
i
n
g
t
o
n
 
E

a
s
t
 
S

p
e
e
d
 
R

e
v
i
e
w

\
C

A
D

\
C

A
D

.
d
w

g

Project

Status Project No.

Scale Drawn

Ch'kd

Auth Traced

Date

Date

Drawing No. Rev.

Drawing Title

Rev.
Description

Drawn Ch'kd Auth Date

Lincolnshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance

Lancaster House,36 Orchard Street,

Lincoln,LN1 1XX

Lincolnshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020

Ordnance Survey 100025370.

East Heckington - A17

Appendix B

Borderline Case - 40mph

NTS

TF June 22

JG June 22

TF/185/003 0

Location of speed survey 1

46mph mean speed

Location of speed survey 3

46mph mean speed

Location of speed survey 2

42mph mean speed

Key

Proposed 40mph

Currently 50mph

P
age 35

A
ppendix B

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Gibbet Hills

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Far Cattle Holme

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
East

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Mown Rakes

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
West

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Swineshead House

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
3.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
Gibbet Hills

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
MP 130.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
Royalty Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
3.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
South Forty Foot Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Heckington Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
SIX HUNDREDS DROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
Six Hundreds

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
Holland Dike

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
Mown Rakes

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
A17

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
A17

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Sluice

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
The Old Post Office

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Co Const, CP & ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
Gibbet Hills

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
Rakes Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
Maize Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
Piggery

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
The Old Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Sluice

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
East Heckington

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
(Drain)

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
Gibbet Hills

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
Labour in Vain

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
Great Hale Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
Twenty Foot Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
Great Hale Eau

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
South Forty Foot Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
The Laurels

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
SIX

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
3.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
Parks Farm Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
Park View Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
HUNDREDS DROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
Memorial

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
Carpenters

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
2.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
Hall Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
The Wheel

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
Hall Farm Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
Holland Dike

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
Great Hale Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
Filling

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
2.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
Ashley

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
Labour in Vain Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
3.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
Six Hundreds

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
Sluice

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
Heckington Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
2.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
2.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
2.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
Six Hundred

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
Farm House

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
Mons

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
Evergreen

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
Field View

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
The Old School

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
Co Const, CP & ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
Park House Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
Fountain

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
CD

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
Reeds

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
Chambers

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
MP 0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
MP 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
MP 0.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
East Lea

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
The Old

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
Pumping Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
SIDEBAR LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
2.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
Heckington Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
First Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
Saona

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
Terrington House

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
Great Hale Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
Great Hale Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
A17

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
A17

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
Silos

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
Rosena

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
2.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
2.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
3.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
Poplars Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
B 1395

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
3.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
Great Hale Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
Level Crossing

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
(Drain)

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
Great Hale Eau

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
Abbey Parks

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
2.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
Great Hale Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
Abbey Parks

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
Heckington Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
Rectory Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
3.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
Great Hale Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
Blacksmiths

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
3.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
Rose Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
Elm Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
Beech House

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
Rainbow

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
3.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
Home Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
Last House

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
Oatsheaf

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
The Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
Rectory Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
MP 129.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
MP 0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
MP 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
Fern Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
The Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
Drifters Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
The Oatsheaf

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
Meadow View

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
MP 0.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
Second Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
Derwent Cottage



T
his page is intentionally left blank



East Heckington 
Appendix C 

 

P
age 37

A
ppendix C



East Heckington 
Appendix C 

Ref. Incident & Cause No. of Vehicles Weather 
Conditions 

Severity 

1 Vehicle 1 pulled out of side road junction and into the path of vehicle travelling on 
main road 
Failed to look properly 

2 x Car Daylight 
Fine 

Slight 

2 Report not available 

 

  Slight 

3 Vehicle 1 has veered onto the opposite side of the road and collided with vehicle 2 
Careless/Reckless/In a hurry 

 

2 x HGVs Dark 
Raining 

Slight 

4 Vehicle 2 has been travelling along the A17 towards Sleaford follow a van. 
Vehicle 2 has come to a stop as the van has indicated to turn into a side road 
leading to elm garage studio and some houses. Vehicle 2 has just applied their 
hand brake when vehicle 1 has struck vehicle 2 from behind.  Vehicle 1 has just 
caught the rear near side of vehicle 2 and it is highly likely that vehicle 1 has 
attempted to avoid vehicle 2 leading to vehicle 1 coming off the road landing in a 
ditch  
Failed to judge other person's path or speed 

V1 Car 
V2 HGV 

Daylight 
Raining 

Serious 

5 Vehicle 1 was travelling west along the A17 and was seen by witnesses to drive 
up the nearside kerb and the correct itself, cross the carriageway directly into the 
path of vehicle 2 which could not avoid a collision 
Swerved 

Car 
Goods Vehicle 

Daylight 
Dry 

Fatal 

6 Vehicle 1 carried out poor manoeuvre and hit the central reservation and lost 
control coming off his motorcycle 
Failed to look properly 

Motorcycle 

 

Daylight 
Fine 

Slight 

7 Traffic slowing westbound on A17 to enter jet petrol station in east Heckington. 
Vehicle 2 behind a vehicle that has decided to turn into the petrol station late 
which has made vehicle 2 brake hard. Vehicle 1 behind has had to brake hard 
but had a trailer on the back which has locked up and vehicle 1 has hit the rear of 
vehicle 2 
Failed to judge other person's path or speed/ following too close 

2 x Car Daylight 
Fine 

Slight 

P
age 38



East Heckington 
Appendix C 

8 Vehicle 1 was travelling eastbound on A17 the vehicle moved across its lane 
towards the right and clipped the curb with the front offside wheel causing the 
driver to loose control and the vehicle to come to a stop by rolling onto its 
passenger side staying in the same lane 
Dazzling headlights 

 

2 x Car Dark 
Dry 

Slight 

9 Vehicle 1 travelling east on A17. Vehicle 1 swerved into the right hand lane 
colliding with vehicle 2 and then colliding into vehicle 3. Vehicle 2 and vehicle 3 
were travelling westbound. Vehicle 3 entered nearside ditch 
Illness or disability, mental or physical 

3 x Car Daylight 
Raining 

Slight 

10 Vehicle 2 has been travelling from Heckington towards Swineshead bridge. 
Vehicle has been stationary behind another vehicle signalling to turn right into the 
jet petrol station. Vehicle 1 has been travelling behind vehicle 2 and collided into 
the rear of vehicle 2 causing damage 
Failed to judge other person's path or speed 

V1 Motorcycle 
V2 Car 

Daylight 
Fine 

Slight 

11 Vehicle1 has swerved to avoid an animal in the carriageway and collided with the 
central island 
Animal or object in carriageway/swerved 

Goods Vehicle Dark 
Dry 

Slight 

12 Vehicle 1 ran into the back of vehicle 2 
Dazzling sun 

V1 Car 
V2 Goods Vehicle 

Daylight 
Fine 

Slight 

13 It would appear vehicle 3 was slowing down in traffic. Vehicle 2 behind vehicle 3 
also slowed. Vehicle 1 has failed to slow and driven into the rear of vehicle 2 
which was shunted into the rear of vehicle 3 
Following too close 

V1 Car 
V2 Car 
V3 Good Vehicle 

Daylight 
Fine 

Slight 

14 Vehicle 1 has pulled out into path of vehicle 2 
Failed to judge other person's path or speed 

V1 Car 
V2 Goods Vehicle 

Daylight 
Raining 

Slight 

15 Driver of vehicle 1 driving at excessive speed along the A17 from Boston. Vehicle 
left road and rolled across private road bridge and went into a ditch. Witness 
stated they has seen them driving aggressively and speeding 
Aggressive driving 

Small Goods 
Vehicle 

Daylight 
Fine 

Serious 

 

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



NORTH

A3

 J
an

 0
3,

20
23

 - 
2:

15
pm

 \\
hp

ce
n1

\u
se

rs
\u

se
rs

\c
om

m
on

\T
ra

ffi
c 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

O
rd

er
s\

Sc
he

m
es

 M
as

te
r F

ol
de

r D
O

 N
O

T 
C

H
AN

G
E\

00
1-

20
0\

18
5 

A1
7 

H
ec

ki
ng

to
n 

Ea
st

 S
pe

ed
 R

ev
ie

w
\C

AD
\C

AD
 - 

N
ew

 P
ro

po
sa

l.d
w

g

Project

Status Project No.

Scale Drawn

Ch'kd

Auth Traced

Date

Date

Drawing No. Rev.

Drawing Title

Rev. Description Drawn Ch'kd Auth Date

Lincolnshire
COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance
Lancaster House,36 Orchard Street,
Lincoln,LN1 1XX

Lincolnshire
COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020
Ordnance Survey 100025370.

East Heckington - A17

Appendix D

Borderline Case - 40mph

NTS
TF Nov 22

JG Nov 22

TF/185/003 0

Location of speed survey 1
46mph mean speed

Location of speed survey 3
46mph mean speed

Location of speed survey 2
42mph mean speed

Key

Proposed 40mph

Existing 50mph

Existing 50mph

Existing 40mph

860 metres of existing
50mph speed limit to remain

990 metres of existing
50mph speed limit to remain
adjacent to existing 40mph

1440 metres of proposed
40mph

P
age 41

A
ppendix D

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
Gibbet Hills

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
Far Cattle Holme

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
East

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
Mown Rakes

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
West

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
Swineshead House

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
3.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
Gibbet Hills

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
MP 130.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
Royalty Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
3.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
South Forty Foot Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
Heckington Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
SIX HUNDREDS DROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
Six Hundreds

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
Holland Dike

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
Mown Rakes

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
A17

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
A17

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
Sluice

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
The Old Post Office

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
Co Const, CP & ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
Gibbet Hills

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
Rakes Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
Maize Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
Piggery

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
The Old Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
Sluice

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
East Heckington

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
(Drain)

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
Gibbet Hills

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
Labour in Vain

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
Great Hale Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
Twenty Foot Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
Great Hale Eau

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
South Forty Foot Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
The Laurels

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
SIX

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
3.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
Parks Farm Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
Park View Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
HUNDREDS DROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
Memorial

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
Carpenters

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
2.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
Hall Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
The Wheel

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
Hall Farm Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
Holland Dike

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
Great Hale Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
Filling

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
2.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
Ashley

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
Labour in Vain Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
3.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
Six Hundreds

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
Sluice

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
Heckington Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
2.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
2.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
2.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
Six Hundred

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
Farm House

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
Mons

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
Evergreen

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
Field View

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
The Old School

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
Co Const, CP & ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
Park House Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
Fountain

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
CD

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
Reeds

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
Chambers

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
MP 0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
MP 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
MP 0.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
East Lea

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
The Old

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
Pumping Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
SIDEBAR LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
2.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
Heckington Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
First Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
Saona

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
Terrington House

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
Great Hale Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
Great Hale Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
A17

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
A17

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
Silos

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
Rosena

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
2.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
2.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
3.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
Poplars Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
B 1395

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
3.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
Great Hale Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
Level Crossing

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
(Drain)

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
Great Hale Eau

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
Abbey Parks

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
2.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
Great Hale Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
Abbey Parks

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
Heckington Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
Rectory Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
3.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
Great Hale Fen

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
Blacksmiths

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
3.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
Rose Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
Elm Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
Beech House

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
Rainbow

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
3.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
Home Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
Last House

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
Oatsheaf

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
The Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
Rectory Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
MP 129.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
MP 0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
MP 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
Fern Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
The Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
Drifters Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
The Oatsheaf

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
Meadow View

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
MP 0.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
Second Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
Derwent Cottage



T
his page is intentionally left blank



       
 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson, Executive Director of Place 
 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 16 January 2023 

Subject: Swineshead, Abbey Road - Proposed waiting restrictions  
Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report considers objections recieved to proposed waiting restrictions at Abbey 
Road as shown at Appendix B. 

 
 

Recommendation(s): 

That the Committee overrules the objections so that the Order, as advertised, may be 
introduced. 

 
 
Background 
 
Following a request from the local county councillor for waiting restrictions in the vicinity 
of the school on Abbey Road, the area has been monitored and assessed. Site visits have 
confirmed that during school drop off and pick up times, indiscriminate on street parking 
results in congestion and reduced forward visibility for drivers and pedestrians. Lack of 
passing places results in vehicles meeting head on and carrying out manoeuvres to turn 
around in the carriageway which presents a hazard for children navigating the area. 
 
To manage parking to provide a safer environment a restriction on parking to apply 
Monday-Friday, between the hours of 8:00 and 9:30am and 2:30 and 4:00pm is proposed, 
as shown at Appendix B. 
 
One objection has been received to this proposal. The objector believes that the lack of 
footway provision beyond the area around the school will make it dangerous for parents 
parking further away, and that they themselves do not have time to walk with their child 
for the additional distance which would result from these proposals. 
 
The objection is noted. However, although the proposed restrictions will apply for some 
distance along Abbey Road they are the minimum required to achieve the aims of the 
scheme. The bend in the road reduces visibility on the western approach to the school and 
restrictions are required to promote safety for all highway users. Alternative places to 
park are available a short distance away and these are served by a footway on at least one 

Page 43

Agenda Item 4.4



side of the road.  Given the extent of on street parking which occurs, it is difficult to secure 
a space close to the school in any case. The potential for a School Crossing Patrol has been 
considered at this location. The removal of parking in this area will improve safety for that 
facility so if the restrictions are introduced further work on the potential introduction of a 
patrol will be carried out.  
 

Conclusion 
 
The extent of the restrictions proposed will serve to improve safety for both drivers and 
pedestrians by removing on street parking specifically at school start and finish times. 
They will also enhance the potential for a School Crossing patrol facility at this location. 
 
Consultation 
 
The following were consulted on these proposals: Local Member, Boston Borough Council; 
Swineshead Parish Council; Lincolnshire Police; EMAS; Lincolnshire Fire & Rescue; Road 
Haulage Association; Freight Transport Association; NFU; Traffic Commissioners; 
Confederation of Public Transport; Stagecoach East Midlands. Copies of the consultation 
documents were delivered to affected frontagers on 8th June 2022. 
 
An advertisement was placed in Boston and Sleaford Standard on 15th June 2022 with an 
objection period ending on 15th July 2022. The documents were also available on the 
County Councils' website. 
The local Member is in support of the proposals. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

None carried out 

Appendices 
 
These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 
Appendix A Site location 
Appendix B Detail of proposed waiting restrictions 
 
Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 were relied 
upon in the writing of this report. 
 
Document Title Where the document can be viewed. 
Correspondence; Consultation documents. Available on request. 
 
This report was written by Jamie Earls who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
TRO@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

Page 44



APPENDIX A : Swineshead, Abbey Road – proposed waiting restrictions 

 

P
age 45

A
ppendix A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B: Swineshead, Abbey Road – proposed waiting restrictions 

 

P
age 47

A
ppendix B



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee held on 5 December 2022
	4.1 Sutton on Sea, High Street and Cromer Avenue - proposed amendments to waiting restrictions
	Appendix A - Site Location
	APPENDIX B - Detail of proposed waiting restrictions

	4.2 Grantham, Various Roads - Proposed Residents Parking Scheme
	APPENDIX A - Site Location
	APPENDIX B - details of proposed restrictions
	APPENDIX C - Grantham RPS Objection details

	4.3 East Heckington A17 - Proposed 40mph speed limit
	Appendix A - Site Location
	Appendix B - original extent of 40mph speed limit proposed and survey locations
	Sheets and Views
	Committee


	Appendix C - Information on road traffic accidents
	Appendix D - Revised proposal for 40mph speed limit
	Sheets and Views
	Proposal



	4.4 Swineshead, Abbey Road - Proposed waiting restrictions
	Appendix A - site location
	Appendix B - details of proposed restrictions


